APPROVED
POLICE COMMISSION MEETING

Minutes of the Meeting of Tuesday August 18, 2009

The Hooksett Police Commission held a public meeting on Tuesday August 18, 2000, at
the Safety Center. Present were Chairperson David Gagnon, Commissioner Henry Roy,
Commissioner Joanne McHugh, Chief Stephen Agrafiotis, and Town Councilor Paul
Loiselle.

1. Call 1o Order:

Chairperson Gagnon called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Roli Call:

Chairperson Gagnon motioned, seconded by Commissioner Roy and the motion carried
unanimously by roll calt vote to enter public session.

Public Session
3. Pledge of Allegiance:
The pledge of allegiance was held.
4. Public input:
David Pearl 79 Main Street:
A. Mr. Pearl asked if the Police Commission discussed the letter that was sent to the
Town Council dated May 27, 2009 and June 2, 2009 reference Police Commission
candidates at the May 19, 2009 Police Commission meeting?
Commissioner Roy stated that it was a generic letter that was instituted over 10 years ago

and there was no meeting held. The letter was signed individually at different times by the
Commissioners. He also commented on the May 27, 2009 letter that Mr. L'Heureux had



Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2008 Public Meeting
Page 2

Public Input Continued:

applied and the same process was done.

Mr. Pearl stated that Chief Agrafiotis had stated that he had stamped the letter confidential
as it was discussed in non-public session.

Commissioner Gagnon stated that the first 2 names were discussed in non-public as the
3" letter was not received in time for the mesting.

Commissioner Roy stated that confidentiality has nothing to do with this as Councilor
Pischetola choose to read the lelter in public.

B. Mr. Pearl stated that at the April 4, 2009 meeting they had met with an attorney. Mr.
Pear! stated that Commissioner Gagnon stated that if he and Commissioner Roy were fo
meet that would constitute a meeting. Mr. Pearl asked that if Commissioner Roy and
Commissioner Maksalla met to discuss things with attorneys didn’t that constitute a
meeting?

Commissioner Gagnon stated no, meetings with legal council is a non-meeting and not
subject to be posted.

C. Mr. Pearl stated that he had written to the Commission asking for a copy of the policy
and procedures and have received no response. Does the Commission have a policy in
place for answering questions and correspondence, ect?

Commissioner Gagnon stated they do not.

Commissioner Roy stated that this was discussed at the last meeting that they could
submit something in writing if they had guestions.

Commissioner McHugh stated that the meefings are conducted via Robert’s Rules, and
that most of the meetings that are conducted in Town are conducted with Robert's Rules in
mind.

Mr. Pearl stated that if he had received a letter stating that would have been fine but had
not received anything.

D. Mr. Pearl inquired about the 88 questions that he had submitied in April.
Chief Agrafiotis stated that they are almost completed.

E. Mr. Pearl asked if the cruisers had laptop computers in them, and are they connected o
the police staticn network with the internet.

Chief Agrafiotis stated no, this was the next step in the process. Chief Agrafiotis stafed that



Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2008 Public Meeting
Page 3

Public input Continued:

they were waiting for the program that was started many years ago and delayed due to
equipment and scheduling issues with the companies involved. The last repeater site is on
line which had to be completed before moving o the next step.

Commissioner Gagnon stated that it is a long process and very costly. it has been done ih
pieces, and it is at the last step.

Maura Quellette, 3 Summer Fare St

A. Ms. Quellette stated that the Commission was stating they have no policy and
procedures in place for the Commission, but they would not take an unsigned complaint
against the Chief because they stated it was a policy of theirs not to accept unsigned
complainis. She asked if that was a written policy or not.

Commissioner Gagnon stated that is a department policy.

Chief Agrafiotis stated that a nonspecific complaint will not be taken. They will take
anonymous complaint but it depends on the information given and the sericusness of it. if
someone comes in with a general complaint they need something to investigate.

Ms. Ouellette asked if they thought the complaint that was presented to them was general.

Commissioner Gagnon stated ves, and that was aiso the opinion of an attorney.

B. Ms. Quellette asked about the non-public meeting that was posted for August 6, 2009
at 11:30 am. Did this meeting happen?

Commissioner Gagnon stated that it was cancelled at the last minute.

Ms. Quellette stated there was one Commissioner present, and did that Commissioner met
with an empioyee.

Commissioner Gagnon stated ves.

Ms. Queliette asked if it will be common practice that the Commission meets with
employees that have resigned. Is this an effort to conduct an exit interview?

A discussion was held reference exit interviews and Chief Agrafiotis stated that the
Commission in the past had received legal advice that exit interviews were not a good
idea. Chief Agrafiotis stated the reascon this mesting was called was because of some
comments that the officer made, it was more specific to the Commission probing what that
officer had to say.

Ms. Ouelleite asked seeing that all 3 Commissioners did not have the opportunity to meet




Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Public Meating
Page 4

Public input Continusd:

with that officer would they be willing o do it at this point? Ms Cusllefte stated that that
officer would be willing to mest with the Commission.

Commissioner Gagnon stated to have the officer contact him.
JR Cueliette, 3 Summer Fare St:

A. Mr. Queliette asked Commissioner Roy at the May meeting if he had the opportunity to
read Maura's copies of e-mail correspondence between her and the Chief. Mr. Ouellette
stated that Commissioner Roy stated he had not.  Mr. Cuellette stated that Commissioner
Roy made a specific claim that Maura released her own press release and a copy she
gave him refuted his claim. Maura was seeking his input into the press release, it
appeared the Chief did not think it was important enough to forward it to him, or think that
his changes were important enough to pass along to Maura. Mr. Quelletie asked him to
explain why he did not review this information?

Commissioner Roy stated that probably he was in the middle of tax season and he had
other pressing things to do, and had not read ii.

Mr. Quellette stated Commissioner Roy was very strong in his comments about the press
release stating that she released her own press release. Mr. Cuellette thinks
Commissioner Roy should look at this.

B. Mr. Cuellette stated that on March 28, 2005 the investigation into the Chief concluded
that all charges be dismissed except for the complaint regarding performance appraisals
and composition of promotion boards. He asked Commissioner Gagnon to outline or
describe what has been developed to correct this investigation finding.

Commissioner Gaghon stated that he would have to ook into this as it was a while ago.

Chief Agrafictis stated that for the record he was cleared, and it had nothing to do with
promotions it was about the evaluations. He produced to the Commission paperwork that
showed that the Commission had approved suspending the evaluation program that was in
place when he became Chief, because it was not working. He was not found that there
was anything wrong, he was acting at the direction of the Commission. Since then there
has been an updated and better evaluation form.

Mr. Cuelletie stated that the Commission then indicated that they were going to work with
the Chief to bring the department together in a proactive fashion. He asked what proactive
changes have been made to resolve the weakness of the system.

Commissioner Gagnon commented that there are people in positions that did not exist
back then. There are 2 captains that did not exist, and a dedicated L. to paltrol. Things
have been changed whether people think it is for the good or not.



Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Public Meeting
Page 5

Public Input Continued:

C. Mr. Ouellette stated that the Commission was going to meet with certain employee
groups to make certain progress regarding their important concerns would continue onin a
meaningful manner, he asked if this was done.

Commissioner Gagnon stated they have not met with any groups and that would be a
violation of the chain of command which they have been accused of doing back in 2005.

D. Mr. Queilette wanted to know if there have been any changes done 1o improve the
command staff's failure in the constant department’s low morale issues.

Commissioner Gagnon stated no.
Todd Lizotte, Hooksett Resident:

A. Mr. Lizotte inquired if he could view the Commission minutes back to 1996 through
2001.

He was advised that there are paper copies at the Police Department that he could view.

8. Mr. Lizotte stated that he was looking at the benefits of accreditation and looked at the
CALEA website, and had a discussion with them. He interviewed 10 different
departments. He asked a few of the departments if they would be willing to receive the
Police Commission on a fact finding mission, looking at how other departmenis are
transformed with accreditation. He stated that he was going to a department to discuss
accreditation and if any of the Commissioners wanted to go, he would set up the meeting.

A discussion was heid on the last accreditation process and the AOM's that are currently
used are based on hatichal accreditation.

Chief Agrafiotis stated that the accreditation had failed before he was hired, and believed it
would be betler to start at state level accreditation.

Commissioner McHugh asked Mr. Lizotte if the other departments were equal in size to
this department.

Mr. Lizotie stated that they were. He thought Durham Police Department was similar in
size.

C. Mr. Lizotie commented that the Chief stated at a prior meeting that Mr. Lizolte did not
understand the background in regards to Jay Defina. Mr. Lizotte has dealt with issues in

retaliation. He did research and iocked for key atiributes on retaliator behavior, and gave
several retaliator behaviors,

Chief Agrafiotis stated that Mr. Lizotte did not know all the facts, and part of the reason for
the large legal bill is to make sure that that specific issue is not something that they have




Hooksstt Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Fublic Meeting
Page 6

Public Input Continued:

done.
Fred Bishop, Hooksett Resident:

A. Mr. Bishop stated that he was a prior Police Commissioner under Chief Oliver, Acling
Chief Plante, and Chief Agrafiotis. Mr. Bishop stated he has listened and watched a lot of
the criticism that has taken place over the last few years. Mr. Bishop wanted o thank the
Commissioners for the work they are doing and how they are handling themselves
professionally in their duties. Mr. Bishop stated that the issues now are no different from
when he served as a Commissioner. Mr. Bishop stated that there were a lot of personnel
issues, and furnovers, and when he joined the Commission there were 5 vacancies.

Mr. Bishop stated all the speakers tonight were very professional in bringing facts and
suggestions, and what goes on behind the scenes on the Hoocksett Issues site is
something different there is name calling, bullying, and it is unprofessional. Anyone who
criticizes anyone in public is unprofessional. Mr. Bishop wanted to compliment the
Commission for taking the high road as it would be easy to retaliate for some of the
negative name calling and bullying that they have been the subject of. Mr. Bishop stated
that Chief Agrafiotis is professional and came with impeccabie credentials.

Mr. Bishop also commented that he has been working with the Economic Development
Committee they have asked some of the people they interviewed what have been their
experience with the departments. Two out of the four that have been interviewed so far
singled out the Police Deparimenit first, and the Fire Department second, they think very
highly of the departments. He stated for them to stay the course and appreciate what they
are doing for the citizens of Hooksett.

Michael DiBitetlo, 2 Tay Road:
A. See enclosed remarks from Mr. DiBitetto to the Police Commission.

See Attachment #1

Marc Miville, Main Street:

A. Discussed the Commissions vote at the prior meeting of acceptance of commenis and
statements made by citizens and wanted to submit his minutes from the March and April
meetings.

Commissioner Gagnon stated that they would have to be submitted under new business.

B. A discussion was held about the way the Commission submitted the letters for
commission applicanis to the Town Council.

C. Mr. Miville stated that he is here to examine and understand the process, and wanted
to ask several guestions.



Hoolksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2008 Public Mesting
Page 7

Public Input Continued:

Commissioner Gagnon asked that Mr. Miville submit his guestions and they will be
reviewed.

Richard Sullivan, 7 Morgan Drive:

A. Mr. Sullivan gave a brief statement of his view of how interactions at the meetings are
being handled, from minute taking to the Hooksett issues blog, to the SRO.

5. Minutes of Last Meeting:

A. Motion was made by Commissioner McHugh to accept the July 21, 2009 public
minutes with amendments to page 2, second paragraph to reflect Commissioner Roy and
Commissioner Gagnon, and page 9 under CIP Workshop changed to needed to be
married to the master plan. Seconded by Commissioner Roy, motion carried unanimously.
B. Motion was made by Commissioner McHugh to accept the July 21, 2009 non-public
minutes with amendment to page 2 change word from enforce to reinforce. Seconded by
Commissioner Roy, motion carried unanimously.

6. Monthly Reports;

A. Discussed the 2008-2009 final budget report for June the Town was 100% expended
and the Police Department was 90.89% expended.

Commissioner McHugh and the Chief held a brief discussion on how the budget expenses
are handled, and how the budget process is handled with the Budget Committee.

Commissioner Roy stated that $292,262 is the largest amount that is being returned to the
Town as compared {o any other town departments.

B. Commissioner Gagnon inquired if they could use impact fees for the laptops. This will
be locked into to see if it could be done.

C. Discussed the 2009-2010 Budget the Town was in week 4 of 52 and expended 7.6%%
and the Police Depariment was 6.09% expended.

9. New Business:
PSNKH Transformer Move:

A. Chief Agrafiotis informed the Commission that PSNH will be putting out a press release
about moving a transformer through Town.



Hooksett Police Cammission

Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Public Meeting
Page 8

Wal-Mart Grand Opening:

A. Chief Agrafiotis stated that Wal-Mart will be hoiding their grand opening August 19,
2009 at 7:30 am.

Wail-Mart Grant:
A. Chief Agrafiotis will be accepting a $2,500 grant from Wal-Mart.
LGOC Training- Boards:

Chief Agrafiotis also wanted to remind the board that Septermnber 30, 2009 at the Town
Council meeting LGC will be presenting training for all board members.

LGC Training- Staff:

A. Chief Agrafiotis stated that the department staff will be attending LGC training on the
budget process.

DHART Helicopier Services:

A. DHART will be putting a helicopter at the Manchester Airport, and the heliport in
Hooksett could be used if needed.

There was also discussion on the Fire, Forestry and Police Depariment that may use the
heliport in differant situations.

Citizens Submittal of Paperwork:
Mr. Miville submitted his paperwork for the March 17, 2009 and the Aprii 21, 2009 minutes.
Space Center:

A. Commissioner McHugh asked if Chief Agrafiolis knew who granted them their liquor
license.

Lt. Cline stated that they have one for beer and wine.

Commissicner McHugh stated that if a liquor license is going to be granted to any business
in town they should lock {o the Police Department to see if the Police Department has any
issues.

Gther Business:

A. Commissioner McHugh asked if they could add a new section titied Gther Business on
the agenda.



Hooksett Police Cornmission

Minuies of the August 18, 2008 Public Meeting
Page O

Public Input:

JR. Cuelietie 3 Summer Fare St

A. He wanted to clarify that the letter to the editor that was discussed earlier had nothing
to do with guns and drugs. He also inquired about the Sheriffs Department investigation
report. .

A discussion was held and Chief Agrafiotis stated that they were looking for safe school
reports and anything they had.

Mr. Cueliette also asked i the people that had spoken tonight were staged.

He was informed that nothing was staged, they were Hooksett citizens speaking on their
own.

B. Mr. Quelletie asked if they were siating that the lack of the internet and the dispatch
connaction for the laptop in the cruisers is financial,

Commissioner Gagnen stated no, they were waiting for the repeater to be instalied and his
recommendation was to try to lock at the impact fees, or it would need to go 1o a warrant
article.

Chief Agrafiotis stated that some people may perceive the officers can't function properly
without this is not correct. it is a nice thing to have but this is not needed to be an efficient
police officer.

Maura Quellette:
A. Ms. Ouellette asked what the criteria was for being placed on the agenda.
She was informed you call and ask to be placed on the agenda.

Commissioner McHugh stated that when a person calis to be placed on the agenda to ask
what the topic of discussion would be.

A discussion was held. Commissioner McHugh stated that the Commission would have a
discussion on this and decide the process.

B. Ms. Cuelletie wanted to know what the process was in order for the Commission to
view a personnel file. Has the Chief ever let a Commissicner review a perscnnel file?
Chief Agrafictis stated no, unless they get to a point of a termination. They do not come in
and read personnel files, it could taint them from hearing a grievance or anything in that
nature.

C. Ms. Cuelietie asked if the legal advice about exit interview was in writing. Chief
Agrafiotis stated that he did not think it was in writing.



Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Public Meeting
Page 10

Public input Continued;

D. Ms. Ouellette stated that she wanted to reiterate her dismay with the handiing with the
SRO Program.

Jay Defina:

A. Jay Defina inquired if someone reviews a personnel file is there any type of
documentation stating that this was done.

Chief Agrafiotis stated that anylime someone looks at a file it is signed off by whoever is
reviewing the file.

Todd Lizotle:
A. Mr. Lizotte wanted to do an exercise on crime analysis for Hooksett,
Chief Agrafiotis told Mr. Lizotte the contact person would be Captain Cecilio.

Mr. Lizotte stated that he would present a letter of what he wanted to achieve. The Town
Report was discussed also.

David Peari, 79 Main St

A. He asked the Commission to have the patience to answer the questions and commenis
about real issues, like the SRO, how meetings are conducted and policies. Then to spend
time listening to citizens complaint.

B. He discussed the Sheriff's investigation and if the memo from Officer Defina was part of
the investigation as he undersiood that it was not, and if it did, did they determined what
happened with the memo.

Commissioner Gagnon stated he does not have an answer right now, and he will check
into i.

Commissioner Gagnon asked Chief Agrafiotis to supply Commissioner Gagnon with a
copy of the letter and the report for review.

C. Mr. Pear! inguired about the minutes of the March 13, 2009 meeting as he thought they
were going o be amended.

Commissioner Gagnon stated that it is still being worked on. Commissioner Gagnon
asked Mr. Pearl for clarification on the time frame that he was discussing. Commissioner
Gagnon stated that it shows the meeting going longer than 2 minutes.

Mr. Pear! stated that he will review it again and get back to him.



Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Public Meeting
Page 12

Aftachment #1
Page 1

Bemarks to the Hooksont Polics Compnission by Rilchas! DiBiteite
At 18, 2089

Twas jobted by 2 reeont letter to the Editor in the Hoeoksett Benser which rond, “¥ no
smpalled ot the bekuvior of the Foolkselt Police Chief and the Hoskeets Palice Comenfesion.”
Wihet's to e appalied aboat? Are we to be appafied that in the tce of & Comstmnt md
witherimg wearly yoar lomy scesult, et the Chicl sed the Commmissivmere have

d teated wnbslieveble renirning?

Dver the paot months going on aearly a year,  have Qﬂ?’&u.ﬁ‘viﬁmﬂ ueumels anppsibimp he&uawmm Tt
wones o0 ihe pari of the Hooleett B, The ciief and the o & 5 B K

et & iy mmad x iy .

i

Er

Blet’s rewiew sowme of the recent events that have browght v o this plnce. The recert
frwd e o originaie from twe evenls: the fivet arises froms the declulon 1o reduse the
fnowra af ﬂ&ee Belvool Resourpe Gfftcer mud seck anwme cost sharfing bobrween the P nund the

e,

B i Tharpe 3 the & el to the repl i of the Szivty Center Sigmage. Due
te e umits of ﬁm«e., ioday’s comments swill e limtted o the Gret madtor.

’]‘E‘Err& h'sﬁt@ mr e SR 1 ws @ respoetfsl DamEs 6F it amd proy o

the Schenl Sugerintemd and the Police Chisf. Iz an apperent offprd o
bokster the cose for meaintainizg a febl e efifeer, an of i pfificial, Sehonl Bosed Mewnler
Mzmre Quelletis, wrsls ¢ Istter to the editor that created an fmpression that the Hoolapit
Bethoals were fofeated with denss amd wenpons. As coald beve amd abowid huve been
amticipated, o Bresiorm enemed.

When the somele cleared,; o mwmber of fheis wers evident, Firet, the numnber of drmg amd

fi wyms far fewrer than wae wers leadf to botfeve. Becomdly, the natere of
tl}m&e izsues did net seppert the level of comerrs that was ralsed tn that lotier. Une of the
highlighied drug issues involved a “pot™ plpe Hat wae fonod fe $he teschoers” lonngs. The
mroch reporied weaposs ncideat lnvelves o kuife that vas token Srom e school apd mmde
it wiry emto & bus. How dd these hneidl 7 Hims pmyome nvesiipnted how o pol
pelippe imaede e way into the teschers® boammge? ';Euﬂ it fmlE ot of & teacher®s purse or poclet?
Fiwsy mivout the koitfe? How did o stodewt snesl 2 lnife out of ihe Cowley Sohoe] el Ee £
sefiwel bes? Aud Heally, why were those reports nol cotnmwricaied o the PO, i 2 Humaly
wpmmner? Doeaw’s the schonll reannere ofifeer Fave the responsibility o e Jully Teporis jast
Hifee nmy other offfcer wonld feave?

A very serious guestion haes been raived abowt whether those fseues were befng reporied

wroprly and bn o Goely manrer and whether those confidentind ncidents may hove boen

shared with o party o partles aot suthorized to sceeas thens. NE General Law Chapor 193

amd the N2 Board of Rducetlon directive B 317 address regurting reguiressents oo

certnin iseidents; specifically, written reporis of covered incldemts mmust e tibed withn 48

kosre. Fhe Stsinie i &“EM: eurhange of theoe conBdential matters se Lo Eoforconment
OEeinls nnd Selbhaol Ad A

Hiws s investigation addressed e guesifon of whether Mawre Ouellstte had accessed soy
off those reporis which she bas oited? Wonld mot that secess have beem o violotion of
Chapior 1837 B s elenr that Officer Deflnn vnd RMamra Caclleite heve hid extensive
aonmanwaicaitoss. I this confdentinl] isformaiion has been shared with wsathorized
parties, kave the affected parenss beom notifeg?



Hooksett Police Commission
Minutes of the August 18, 2009 Public Meeting
Page 13

Attachment #1
Page 2

Forthernaore, what fs renily behind thie effort fo profect the SRO pasiton? We can now
cheariy see that the fuvws of the effort i mot just do protect the pusition of the SRO, but the
shiestive is o specifioally eave the posiilon for Uificer Defizn. The propounents bave made it
cleer that wo other offfcer will be accapinible. Why?

Clearly, the tenors of Gfficer Dellne has been marked by o moar congimng confiies with the
adminigirption sud be bas frced repeated disciplinary setioms.

We can see that this confliet dates sl the way bacl (o the hiving of Agrafiodls as the
Hineksett Polies Chief, Whatever promises may have Seen wnde by prioy chieds or seting
cheiefs, # beenne very clear enrly on that & numbper of officers harbored resentments 2t the
Taliteng of & new cliied froms cuiside of the organization.

I fypleal response to the lntest disciplinary action, an anonymows Hst of grivvances againgt
the chief has appesred. Reappenred weuld be a mers acearate word, as this fist is
goserttally & wormed over recitation of the sume Mt that was relsed fonr vears agp. These
charges were made snd adjudicated and found to be withewt merit. Moet importantly, et
tnefdent left the commission realining that its 3l sdvised aliempt to respond to the comnplaimnt
Teft # severely compronized and foft the Chiel mafaivty sealigned. §wonld frust that ne
smoust of badperiag will compel this hosrd 4o repest that uisale.

T¢ s hmpoviznt 0o note ihat despite the mary sllegations mads against the ohiel by tis
efficer, and concidering the long history of the Teanssters” willingness fo grieve suclh
eomplainis; hat, 0o revord exists of awy coripleint having been browght before elther the
Superier Court oy the NH Peblic Employees Labor Bosrd., Deviead, the sofions et have
been takon ore i direst vislation of the vaien contrrct which spectficnily probiblts ey
alifficer from teling actions which are oulside of the agreed wgon grisvance provess. K is
absndandy oear that this oficer hes conspired with public officialy to interiere with the
Hoakseit Polive Department operations? The Budeet Committes’s actlons to puafsh the
ehivf npd the department throngh the budget pracess am » clear vickation of state laws
pegniating the bebavior of public officials.

Hias this commissipn saforeed the contractusl oblieations of the Teawsters Union te
restrain Officer Defina from talkdng bis grievance outsile of the presess? The citieens of
Flookseit are o party of interest to the contract and have & right to be asoured that s
provisieny sre enfered.

O final mote, the coordimnisd atinek ketters i the Banver never fall @ assert that they
represent the splulons sed feclings of the citfvens of Hooksett. Lot me ssenve you that they
do wot repravent 2 sikent wajority that Bnds thew walyie, dstustefel ned abbhoreent. RMswy
Bave communicated thelr interest v corvecting the probisms with the prbliic officials who
are responsibie snd are willing to take the wseessary legsl stops to do so.



